
ConZa\ Planning Board (PB)

Januar\ 02, 2020

Minutes ± Meeting

Members Present: Beth Girshman (Chair), Joseph Str]egoZski (Vice-Chair), Mar\ McClintock,
Bill MoebiXs, Jennifer MXllins

Other attendees: Ale[is Fedorjac]enko (staff), James GrXber (Pro Terra Design GroXp), SXsan
Fentin, Gar\ Fentin, Ellen Tinen, Dan Tinen, Samantha Fabian, Daniel Potter, Grace Larson,
SXe Bridge, Mark SilYermn, Peter JesZald, Ph\llis JesZald, Bob Armstrong (Select Board), Kate
French, DaYid DeLXcca, Walter Goodridge, Katherine MacColl, Wilder McCo\, Philip Kantor
(Select Board), And\ Jaffe, Gisele LitalieX, Shelb\ DoZne\, Dan Potter, DaYid Potter, Lisa
GXstaYsen, Mar\ IrZin, Bill Haines, Cecil Antes, John Moore, James CabrXl, Randall Williams,
Peter Gill, Thomas HXtcheson (ToZn Administrator), Mike Kirkalonas, Carlos RiYera, LXc\
Anderson

Location: ConZa\ ToZn Hall, GP room

Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm

1. IntrodXctions. Beth e[plained the process and pXrpose of the meeting. There Zas a qXestion
from Gar\ Fentin aboXt Zhether this meeting is a continXation of the PXblic Hearing: Beth
e[plained that it is not, the hearing Zas closed on December 19 and this is a regXlar
meeting at Zhich the Roaring Glen Farms proposal Zill be considered, Zith qXestions asked
b\ the Planning Board and an opportXnit\ for pXblic comment. Joe reminded the attendees
that the Planning Board¶s focXs is on ConZa\ B\laZs. Mar\ added that there haYe been
seYeral issXes broXght Xp that do not relate to the criteria of the local toZn b\laZ.

2. MinXtes from the meeting and hearing on December 17, 2019, Zere reYieZed. Motion b\
Joe to approYe minXtes; seconded b\ Jennifer. Motion passes, 4-0-1 Zith Mar\ abstaining
becaXse she had been absent. MinXtes from the hearing on December 19, 2019, Zere
reYieZed. Motion b\ Mar\ to approYe minXtes; seconded b\ Joe. Motion passes, 5-0-0.

3. Verte[ ToZer Assets Zireless toZer Special Permit Application

a. Beth said the application Zas receiYed Dec 20. She folloZed Xp Zith seYeral
consXltants and heard back from tZo, both of Zhom ZoXld be acceptable.

b. Joe checked Zith the BXilding Commissioner ± he is ok Zith signed draZings.

c. Beth said ne[t thing to do is set a date for the PXblic Hearing. She thinks JanXar\ Zill
be bXs\ bXt the applicant cannot come to FebrXar\ 6 so Beth proposes the Planning
Board meet on FebrXar\ 13 (not a regXlar meeting date). This Zill be a joint meeting
Zith the Zoning Board of Appeals if possible (there Zas discXssion Zith Mark
SilYerman Zho Zas present from the ZBA aboXt schedXling of the meeting and of the
balloon test).

d. Joe e[plained that the site of the proposal is the Plasse propert\, the first driYeZa\ in
ConZa\ at 1384 S. Deerfield Road.

4. AnnXal report and actions for spring toZn meeting.



a. There Zas discXssion aboXt Zho ZoXld do the report ± Jennifer YolXnteered. The
deadline is mid-FebrXar\.

5. Site Plan ReYieZ / Special Permit Application for Roaring Glen Farms, LLC

a. Beth e[plained that the Planning Board ZoXld go throXgh the ConZa\ B\laZs
section b\ section and ZoXld ask qXestions.

b. Section 11.4 B (regarding distance to locations Zhere children congregate)

i. DiscXssion and qXestions aboXt the site inclXding oZnership of adjacent
parcels, propert\ lines, and a right aZa\ or easement. Carlos RiYera proYided
information in response to the Board¶s qXestions. Beth said she sees an
easement or a right of Za\ as different than a propert\ line (it is not their
propert\), and Joe said it appears that stopping an actiYit\ is pXtting a bXrden
on the propert\ oZner. There Zas disagreement from Gar\ Fentin Zho
sXggested asking ToZn CoXnsel. Mar\ said \es, the\ ZoXld ask ToZn
CoXnsel to reYieZ the propert\ lines and oZnership. Gar\ asked if additional
information coXld be sXbmitted and the Planning Board indicated the ne[t
step Zas to ask ToZn CoXnsel.

ii. DiscXssion aboXt the definition of children congregating. Joe said there is an
e[ample in the state gXidelines that sa\s an ice cream stand is not children
congregating; in his thinking, he Xses the idea of ³assemble´ to denote people
Zho are gathering together for a particXlar pXrpose. Beth reiterated the
langXage of the b\laZs and Zhat it does / does not inclXde as far as
langXage aboXt children congregating. She belieYes the issXe is hoZ often
and hoZ regXlarl\ « haYing a part\ Zith children in attendance is not the
same, she said, as children congregating on a dail\ basis. Mar\ said that the
ChXrch of God presented information that the\ are licensed as a conference
center and that there had a coXple of eYents there in the fall; it is Yer\ recent
that it¶s been Xsed, bXt it has indeed been Xsed. Carlos proYided additional
e[planation. There Zas discXssion; Mar\ said ZithoXt clarit\ aboXt the
easement qXestion, there is little more to discXss. Mar\ said she sees the
conference center as ³e[isting´ and that it applies to all ages, so it does meet
the definition of ³children congregate.´

c. Mar\ asked aboXt site screening in Section 11.5 C and there Zas discXssion among
the Planning Board. Beth asked if an order of condition ZoXld be that the trees ZoXld
need to be maintained; Mar\ said \es, that ZoXld be a condition.

d. Beth said that it seems Section 11.5 A and B haYe been met; Joe said this can be
doXble checked.

e. Mar\ shared thoXghts on Section 11.5 D (Lighting & SecXrit\). She said the\ saZ a
preliminar\ bXt not final secXrit\ plan and a lighting plan, and her qXestion is aboXt
the role of the Planning Board regarding secXrit\ becaXse it seems the role is clear
regarding lighting. She asked if there Zas information aboXt lighting and Ale[is read
from the minXtes of the Hearing. DiscXssion, and Beth asked a clarif\ing qXestion: is
there a secXrit\ plan narratiYe that Zill be sXbmitted to the state? Lisa said she
belieYes that Zill be part of the ne[t step of the process, Zhich has not been
schedXled. There Zas discXssion aboXt XnknoZns regarding the timing. Joe asked to
clarif\ that there Zill be no gXards and asked aboXt Zhere secXrit\ notification goes.
There Zas brief discXssion, it appears the State Police, not the toZn.

f. Section 11.5 E (Noise and Odors) ± Brief discXssion aboXt odor control and the
sXbjectiYit\ of measXring, and aboXt possible conditions. Mar\ asked Zhat leYel of



processing manXfactXring ZoXld be happening in the bXildings. John ansZered the
crop is dried and packaged. Mar\ asked for and receiYed confirmation that there Zill
be no other processing sXch as making tinctXres. Mar\ asked for information aboXt
the dr\ing enYironment, and the odor potential coming oXt of the bXildings Zhere the
crop is more concentrated in one space. John ansZered there is filtration odor
control. John clarified that the bXilding labeled as ³e[traction lab´ is something for the
fXtXre and not part of cXrrent plans; the lab noZ ZoXld haYe people trimming at
tables. Beth stated for attendees that if there Zere additional proposed Xses there
ZoXld need to be another Special Permit. Beth states that, as the Board of Health
said, that the area of odors seemed Yer\ specXlatiYe.

g. Section 11.5 F (Ha]ardoXs Materials) ± Beth said that at the hearing it Zas stated
this is an organic farm, Zhich is fantastic, bXt there are still pesticides Xsed in organic
farming alloZed Xnder state regs and asked for more detail aboXt Zhat ZoXld be
Xsed. Beth asked John and Lisa if there is no intention to Xse an\ of the material
t\pes listed in Section F. John confirmed that eYer\thing has to be OMRI certified.
The Planning Board e[plained the\ still need the information.

h. Section 11.5 G (DriYeZa\s) and H (Signage) ± there Zere no qXestions.

i. Section 11.5 I (BXildings) ±Joe asked the area of the tZo hoop bXildings. John said
the\ are 30 [ 96 for a sqXare footage of 2,880 each.

j. Section 11.5 J (CXltiYation) and K (Energ\ efficienc\) ± there Zere no qXestions.

k. Section 11.5 L (Water Efficienc\) ± Beth stated that there Zere concerns from
abXtters. Mar\ asked for the irrigation plan dXring a draXght. John said drop irrigation
as close to the soil as possible to stop eYaporation. Joe asked if the applicant ZoXld
be amenable to metering the Zater for the neZ Zell, becaXse it ZoXld be interesting
to get some data. John said the\ ZoXld absolXtel\ look into it. Mar\ said that drip
irrigation is efficient.

l. Section 11.5 O (Site Plan ReYieZ) ± Mar\ and Beth discXssed that there did not
seem to be a map shoZing distances as oXtlined in this section. John Moore asked
for clarification and the Planning Board e[plained.

m. Section 11.5 P (Change in license or oZner) ± Joe said this langXage mimics the
state laZ, and the Planning Board needs to knoZ Zho are the legal oZners and if
there are an\ other parties. Lisa and John ansZered no, there are not an\ other
parties besides them.

n. Section 11.5 Q (Change of OZnership) ± Joe asked aboXt the reqXirements for an
LLC oZnership, and asked Gar\ Fentin aboXt the reqXirements for an LLC. After
general discXssion the Planning Board agreed the\ ZoXld ask ToZn CoXnsel.

o. Section 11.6 E[piration ± There Zas discXssion among Planning Board members
that the fiYe-\ear period had been set to match the host-commXnit\ agreement.

6. The floor Zas opened for pXblic comment on the Roaring Glen Farms proposal. Beth asked
people Zho speak offer neZ information or qXestions, not things alread\ raised.

a. Mike Kirkalonas, Roaring Brook Road ± Stated that he is disappointed Zith the ToZn
of ConZa\ and their commXnication; he has signed Xp on the toZn Zebsite seYeral
times, and has not receiYed information. Mike said he greZ Xp in toZn and that the
pond Zas Xsed a lot b\ kids and Zas Yer\ actiYe. He said considering this, he thinks
the Planning Board shoXld be looking hard at the proposal.

b. And\ Jaffe, Academ\ Hill Road ± Stated he thoXght it Zas rXde of the applicant to
leaYe. Beth and Mar\ e[plained that comments aboXt the personalities or behaYior of



the applicants are not a criteria for the planning board. And\ said he Zanted to ask if
there is an\ record of John Moore haYing talked to Carlos or being aZare of the
natXre of the easement Zhen he broXght the propert\.

c. Carlos RiYera ± Stated he has a feZ concerns. First, he feels the proposal is a pXblic
safet\ concern becaXse Mr. Moore has been hostile. Beth said the Planning Board
has receiYed a nXmber of comments from people concerned aboXt these issXes, and
that the\ are not a criterion in the B\laZs. Beth e[plained that the police, the Select
Board, and the Cannabis Control Commission -- Zhich has not \et issXed a license
for this operation ± are other YenXes to raise these concerns.

d. Peter JesZald, Old Cricket Hill Road ± States that he assXmes there are other
sections of the b\laZ that the Planning Board has pXrYieZ oYer sXch as ³is it a good
fit for the toZn.´ Joe e[plained that \es, he has to compl\ Zith other sections of the
b\laZ and Mar\ clarified (driYeZa\s, soapmaking and other prohibited actiYities).
Peter also said he don¶t think it sa\s congregate has to be fiYe da\s a Zeek, that it¶s
Beth¶s interpretation. Beth said the intent in her mind Zas not casXal groXping.

e. Phil Kantor, RiYer Street ± States he Zanted to address a coXple of the points made
b\ other people. Phil said that state regXlations state the pXrpose of lighting is onl\
for sXrYeillance pXrposes. He also said that the b\laZ sa\s ³e[cept for oXtdoor
cXltiYation´ in the odor section.

f. Gar\ Fentin, Roaring Brook Road ± Stated that the\ are talking aboXt fear and
treatment of people that affects their health, safet\, and general Zelfare. He feels this
project is be\ond the scope of Zhat Zas intended. He Zas also Xpset to not haYe
had notice. Mar\ e[plained all of the things the Planning Board did to get the Zord
oXt aboXt the PXblic Hearing. Gar\ said this is Yer\ hard.

g. SXsan Fentin, Roaring Brook Road ± Asked the Planning Board to look at Section
11.1 (PXrpose and Intent) and read the langXage of this section. SXsan sa\s the\ are
terrified aboXt safet\ issXes as a homeoZner in the area, and that another concern is
propert\ YalXes. SXsan said she has read that propert\ YalXes go doZn.

h. LXc\ Anderson, Roaring Brook Road ± Stated that she is terrified and e[plained her
pro[imit\ to the site. She sa\s she is incXrabl\ ill. She said she thinks it¶s fair to ask
more qXestions aboXt the aqXafers and smell. She said that the neighbors sa\ there
are a lot of people inYesting in the proposal, and she asked the Planning Board to dig
deeper. She sa\s she has spoken to the Police. She sa\s Zh\ can¶t the\ pXt the
proposal at the hoXse of someone Zho sXpports the proposal. She asked that the\
reqXire the applicants to make stXdies.

i. James CabrXl, Reeds Bridge Road ± Stated that he liYed on Roaring Brook Road
Zhen he first moYed to ConZa\. He said most people in ConZa\ enjo\ more than
their \ard. He said the last time he Zas in the neighborhood he felt the emerg\ Zas
different. He also feels it¶s a hXge amoXnt of Zater and he thinks the Zater shoXld be
looked at. The prodXct he is groZing is for recreational Xse. He said he¶s a medical
Xser, and that medical is groZn indoors Zhich eliminates a lot of the other issXes.

j. SXe Bridge, ConZa\ ± Read a note that has been sent to the Planning Board stating
that she is not opposed to marijXana in ConZa\, bXt that she is concerned aboXt the
climate of the proposal.

k. DaYid DeLXcca, Roaring Brook Road ± Stated that one member of the Planning
Board seemed to laXghingl\ dismiss objections. He said he is neZ to toZn and he
did not Yote for the b\laZ or for marijXana in MassachXsetts.



l. Samantha Fabian, Roaring Brook Road ± Asked: If the Cannabis Control
Commission does not approYe the proposal then the\ can¶t do it? The ansZer is \es.
Mar\ clarified a license from the state, host commXnit\ agreement, and folloZing an\
laZs of the toZn are reqXirements. Samantha sXggested the neighbors coXld Zork
together on this, and also asked for clarification aboXt the proposal being
commercial. Mar\ e[plained that marijXana is not considered agricXltXre for the
pXrposes of ]oning (and thXs is not e[cepted from certain reqXirements as other
agricXltXre is). Mar\ described in general the Za\ the b\laZs of ConZa\ Zork.

m. Katherine McColl, SoXth Deerfield Road ± Stated that she does not trXst that the
applicant Zill folloZ his oZn plan, and she asked Zho is in charge of making sXre
that he is in compliance. Jennifer e[plained that Yiolations are complaint-based. Joe
e[plained that for the local b\laZ, the enforcement ZoXld be local. She asked if there
are complaints Zhat ZoXld be done. Joe said that the Planning Board ZoXld be
responsible for enforcing Yia the appropriate part\. Katherine asked if the Special
Permit can be rescinded if he Yiolates the conditions. The ansZer is \es.

n. Walter Goodridge, SoXth Deerfield Road ± Stated that he thinks it¶s important to get
specific information on odor control. Is it possible to stipXlate more detail, sXch as
Zhat kind of filters? Mar\ said the Planning Board needs more clarification aboXt
Zhat the\ haYe jXrisdiction oYer Zith regards to odor.

o. There Zas a qXestion from the aXdience aboXt Zhen a decision ZoXld be issXed.
Mar\ said there is no set date. Beth said the Planning Board is taking their time. Joe
said there are 90 da\s from the close of the hearing. Mar\ e[plained that agendas
are posted at least 48 hoXrs ahead oXtside ToZn Offices, and this proposal Zill be on
the agenda Xntil a decision is rendered.

p. Peter JesZald ± Asked if the Planning Board coXld ask the applicant to hire
consXltants to calcXlate the amoXnt of Zater the s\stem ZoXld Xse. Joe said \es, it is
possible for the Planning Board to hire a consXltant and charge the applicant. There
Zas discXssion.

7. PXblic QXestions conclXded at 7:55 pm. The Planning Board then discXssed the list of
qXestions for ToZn CoXnsel and other matters related to the Roaring Glen Farms proposal
inclXding the possibilit\ of hiring a consXltant for Zater or other technical qXestions.

8. The Planning Board conclXded its other bXsiness Zith a discXssion aboXt the Verte[ ToZer
Assets Zireless toZer proposal. Beth stated that there are tZo consXltants, one of Zhom is
aYailable for a Zider range of dates, Mr. Goldstein. There Zas discXssion. Motion b\ Mar\ to
aXthori]e Beth to ask Mr. Goldstein for a reference and a formal qXote, and to share the
qXote Zith Attorne\ Parisi for the applicant; seconded b\ Jennifer. Motion passes 5-0-0.

Motion b\ Mar\ to adjoXrn the meeting; seconded b\ Jennifer. Motion passes, 5-0-0.

AdjoXrned at 8:40 pm.

RespectfXll\ sXbmitted,
Ale[is Fedorjac]enko


